# TONBRIDGE AND MALLING BOROUGH COUNCIL

## JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD

## **MINUTES**

### Monday, 6th June, 2022

**Present:** County Cllr H Rayner (Chair), Cllr R P Betts, Cllr R I B Cannon, Cllr M Taylor, Cllr D Thornewell, County Cllr Mrs S Hohler, County Cllr M Hood, County Cllr S Hudson, County Cllr A Kennedy and County Cllr P Stepto.

> (Note: As Councillors P J Montague (Vice-Chair), V M C Branson and D A S Davis were unable to attend in person and participated via MS Teams, they were unable to vote on any matters).

> Councillor P Boxall was present in the Council Chamber pursuant to Council Procedure Rule No 15.21.

Councillors Mrs J A Anderson, A E Clark, D Harman, D Keers, B J Luker, M R Rhodes, J L Sergison, K B Tanner and Mrs M Tatton participated via MS Teams and joined the discussion when invited to do so by the Chairman in accordance to Council Procedure Rule No 15.21.

An apology for absence was received from County Councillor Mrs T Dean.

# PART 1 - PUBLIC

### JTB 22/13 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest in accordance with the Code of Conduct.

### JTB 22/14 MINUTES

**RESOLVED**: That the Minutes of the meeting of the Joint Transportation Board held on 7 March 2022 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

### MATTERS FOR THE COUNTY COUNCIL

## JTB 22/15 PROPOSED 40MPH SPEED LIMIT - B2016 SEVEN MILE LANE, MEREWORTH

The report of the Head of Transportation at Kent County Council detailed the proposed 40mph speed limit restrictions on the B2016 Seven Mile Lane, Mereworth. The Schemes, Planning and Delivery (SPD) Team were assisting with the writing and consultation of the traffic regulation order (TRO) for the scheme which was being funded and installed on behalf of Kent County Councillor Sarah Hudson via the Combined Members Grant (CMG). The report sought approval to proceed to make the Traffic Regulation Order following public consultation already completed.

**RESOLVED:** That the 40mph speed limit on the B2016, Seven Mile Lane, be implemented as shown on the plan at Appendix D to the report.

# JTB 22/16 UPPER HAYSDEN LANE, TONBRIDGE - PROPOSED TRAFFIC CALMING SCHEME AND GENERAL UPDATE

The report of the Head of Transportation, Kent County Council, outlined the outcomes of the public consultation in relation to the proposed traffic calming on Upper Haysden Lane outside The Nexus School and heading north east towards Brook Street. The report also referred to discussions and previous reports in relation to the request for a reduction in speed limit to 30mph on Upper Haysden Lane. It was highlighted that the complete scheme would include a 30mph speed limit, concrete cushions (traffic calming) and flashing (wig-wags) school warning signs in the vicinity of the school access.

**RESOLVED:** That the full scheme, as shown at Appendix A to the report, be installed.

# MATTERS SUBMITTED FOR INFORMATION

# JTB 22/17 ON-STREET PARKING CHARGES - OUTCOME OF PUBLIC CONSULTATION

The joint report of the Director of Street Scene, Leisure and Technical Services and the Director of Finance and Transformation detailed the outcome of the public consultation in respect of on-street parking charges. Although the proposals had been advertised and objections invited, no responses were received to the proposals either in support or objection.

# JTB 22/18 HIGHWAYS FORWARD WORKS PROGRAMME: 2022/23

The report of the Kent County Highways, Transportation and Waste summarised schemes programmed for delivery in 2022/23 and provided an update on Road, Footway and Cycleway Renewal and Preservation Schemes (Appendix A), Drainage Repairs and Improvements (Appendix B), Street Lighting (Appendix C), Transportation and Safety Schemes (Appendix D), Developer Funded Works (Appendix E), Bridge Works (Appendix F), Traffic Systems (Appendix G) and the Combined Members Grant (Appendix H). Representatives from Kent County Council Highways responded to questions relating to street lighting in the borough, footway protection on Sevenoaks Road/Borough Green Road, signage and placement of safety cameras on Tonbridge Road, the enhancement of Ryarsh bus services and the flooding issue on Pembury Road.

A request was made that consideration be given to the responses received in respect of the A20 scheme between the A228 and Coldharbour if the scheme were revisited, and that the planned drainage remedial work be included in any new scheme.

# JTB 22/19 TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT ACT 2004 PART 6 AMENDMENTS - JTB BRIEFING

The item was withdrawn from the agenda.

# MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION IN PRIVATE

# JTB 22/20 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

There were no items considered in private.

The meeting ended at 8.19 pm